
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the June 9, 2021 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

There will be a five minute time limit on all presentations.  Please avoid repetition and limit your comments to the
subject matter being considered.  

 3.a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a Preliminary Plat called Elmwood Commons Plat
1 for the property located at 2545 Kadlec Drive

 Attachment

 3.b. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from R-1B, Single Family Residential District,
to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, for the property located at 901 Harrison
Avenue

 Attachment

 3.c. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from temporary R-1A, Single Family
Residential District, to permanent R-1A, Single Family Residential District, for the property
located at 2021 E Ridge Road

 Attachment
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for
the property located at 9024 S Suburban Drive in the Town of Turtle

 Attachment

 4.b. Consideration of an Ordinance to create sections 30.31(3)(d) and (e) of the Code of
General Ordinances for the City of Beloit relating to sign area bonuses for on-premise
signs

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Conditional Use Permit for 550 W Grand Avenue
Natural Gas Easement for 1901 Gateway Boulevard

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, June 23, 2021

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - June 23, 2021

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/971687/06-09-2021_Plan_Commission_minutes-amended_by_Tim.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/967599/June_23_Staff_Report_3a__Preliminary_Plat_of_Elmwood_Commons_Plat_1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/967608/June_23_Staff_Report_3b__ZMA_-_901_Harrison_Avenue.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/968208/June_23_Staff_Report_3c__ZMA-2021-05__2021_E._Ridge_Road.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/967738/June_23_Staff_Report_4a__CSM-2021-04__9024_S_Suburban_Drive___TOT_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/967610/June_23_Staff_Report_4b__Sign_Ordinance_Amendment.pdf


Sign Ordinance Exceptions for Jiffy Lube and Mavis Tires and Brakes
  
6. ADJOURNMENT

The Plan Commission will adjourn to a workshop to discuss the City of Beloit's Outdoor Sign
Regulations

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - June 23, 2021

2



 

1 | P a g e  

 

        

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM.  Chairman Weeden, Commissioners Toral, Robson, 
Ramsden, Ruster, Anderson, Finnegan, and Councilor Preuschl were present. 
 

2. MINUTES 
2.a.  Consideration of the minutes of the May 19, 2021 Plan Commission meeting and 

amended minutes for the May 5, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
Motion was made by Commissioner Robson, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to 
approve the minutes. Motion carried, roll call vote (7-0). 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
3.a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the 

property located at 2030 Porter Avenue in the City of Beloit and two vacant lots 
located immediately to the south of 2030 Porter Avenue in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  
 
Commissioner Ramsden asked if there was a list of neighbors nearby that got 
notified. Ms. Christensen stated that neighbors do not get notified until the rezoning 
happens; the Comprehensive Plan process does not require the neighbors to be 
notified. Commission Ramsden stated if neighbors would be opposed at what point 
would they get a chance to put their input about the zoning change. Ms. Christensen 
stated that for the rezoning itself, they would be individually notified if they own 
property within 150 feet of the property, and staff would also notify the Town Clerk.  
 
Commissioner Toral asked if there is going to be noise pollution or industrial 
emissions that might affect the neighbors nearby. Ms. Christensen stated she did not 
think so, as this is an industrial service use that would not typically have emissions. 

 
Commissioner Weeden opened the public hearing and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Anderson stated if Phase One is allowed by right, and it is only the 
parking lot that is in the Town, why would they be required to annex the properties 
into the City of Beloit. Ms. Christensen stated that the applicant has already 

3



 

2 | P a g e  

 

requested to be annexed in, and if they want to come into the City they must meet 
the Comprehensive Plan and City staff was guiding them.  

Motion was made by Commissioner Finnegan, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to 
approve the Comprehensive Plan amendment.  Motion carried, roll call vote (7-0). 
 

3.b. Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor sales of alcohol for the 
property located at 550 W Grand Ave 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  
 
Councilor Preuschl stated that he was hoping the Police Department was there so he 
could discuss their memo.   
 
Commissioner Weeden stated how many other issues start there at the laundromat 
and end up somewhere else. Ms. Christensen stated that the nearby residents 
indicated that there are a number of issues at this site, including loitering and 
possible drug deals. 

 
Commissioner Weeden opened the public hearing. 
 
David Allen, owner of Beloit Auction and Realty, 534 W Grand Avenue, stated he is 
opposed to the Conditional Use Permit.  He also submitted an e-mail opposed to the 
conditional use permit. 
 
Megge Casique, representing Youth2Youth, indicated that her family still lives in that 
area. She does not support the sale of alcohol at this location because it would lower 
property values and raise concerns to neighbors and kids that are walking around in 
that area.  

 
Commissioner Weeden closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Anderson asked if the development met rules for a Conditional Use to 
be able to sell liquor, why would Plan Commission recommend denial.  Also, why 
wouldn’t we just let the Alcohol Committee make this decision?  Ms. Christensen 
explained that the City had developed a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area 
for the Hackett and Merrill neighborhoods, and staff believes that adding liquor sales 
to these neighborhoods could be detrimental to the neighborhoods.  The City feels 
that this use would have a negative impact on the neighborhood unless someone had 
plans to upgrade the site.  However, that is not the case with this owner.  
Commissioner Anderson stated he thought it should be left up to the Alcohol 
Committee to decide.  
 

4



 

3 | P a g e  

 

Motion made by Commissioner Ramsden to deny the conditional use permit based 
on facts presented in the staff report, seconded by Commissioner Robson.  Motion to 
deny was approved, roll call vote (7-0). 
 

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of an Extraterritorial one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property 

located 6208 W. Beloit-Newark Road in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Motion was made by Commissioner Robson, seconded by Commissioner Anderson to 
approve the Extraterritorial one-lot CSM.  Motion carried, roll call vote (7-0). 
 

4.b. Consideration of proposed Natural Gas Easement for the City-owned property 
located 1901 Gateway Blvd (Christensen) 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  
 
Commissioner Toral asked what the City of Beloit planned to do when natural gas 
could no longer be expanded in relation to the goal to be carbon neutral by 2040.  
Ms. Christensen stated that he should reach out to City Council so that they could 
include something in their strategic plan related to this issue or the Department of 
Public Works to see if that is something they are looking into.  It is not something to 
be considered by this board. Ms. Christensen indicated that the item before the 
Commission was to allow natural gas within an easement on City-owned property.  
The City itself does not approve natural gas expansions.   

Motion was made by Commissioner Ruster, seconded by Commissioner Finnegan to 
approve the Natural Gas Easement.  Motion carried, roll call vote (7-0). 

 
4.c. Consideration of an Ordinance to create sections 30.31 (3)(d) and (e) of the Code 

General Ordinances for the City of Beloit relating to sign area bonus for on-premise 
signs 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  
 
Commissioner Weeden asked Ms. Christensen if they could amend the ordinance in 
Section 1 on line three to say “90% of the difference between the sign area of the 
freestanding primary sign and the maximum sign area allowed in section 30.35 may 
be applied to one or more secondary wall signs” and in section 2, add the same 
language.  Commissioners suggested evaluating whether this number should be 
smaller. Ms. Christensen indicated that staff could evaluate different percentages 
that could be used. 

5



 

4 | P a g e  

 

  
Commissioner Robson indicated that it seems like the intent of the bonus system is 
to allow larger signs.  Ms. Christensen explained that the bonuses are allowed only 
for higher quality signs or if the buildings are set back a larger distance. 
 
Commissioner Anderson asked if that distance bonus would apply to Mavis.  Ms. 
Christensen said that it would not, as written, because the property is setback from 
the frontage road is still part of the right-of-way.  Therefore, the building is not 
setback that far. 
 
Ms. Christensen asked if there was anything else the Commissioners wanted to 
suggest adding to the ordinance. No additional guidance was received from the 
Commission. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Robson, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to lay 
over the item. Motion carried, roll call vote (7-0). 
 
Commissioner Robson indicated that she felt that related to this item is the need to 
discuss as a Commission the Sign Ordinance.  She indicated that she would like an 
item added to the agenda to allow for the discussion of the Sign Ordinance.  Ms. 
Christensen indicated that she and the Chairman would discuss adding this item 
when they set the next agenda.  She indicated that we would not want to add a 
discussion item unless we think we will have adequate time for a discussion. 
 
Commission Toral said that he would also like to discuss allowing native grasses. 

 
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 

Ms. Christensen provided the following updates: City Council approved the Zoning Map 
Amendment for 1945 Prairie and the transitional living ordinance. There will be virtual 
training for boards, committees and commissions at 4:00 PM on June 16. The next Plan 
Commission meeting is scheduled for June 23, 2021.   

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Commissioner Ruster, and seconded by Commissioner Robson to adjourn. 
Motion carried, roll call vote (7-0). Meeting was adjourned at 8:10 PM. 
 
 

  

Timothy Weeden, Chairman 

6



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: June 23, 2021

Agenda Item: 3.a.

File Number: PS-2021-03

General Information

Applicant/Owner: NG Kadlec Land, LLC
Address/Location: 2545 Kadlec Drive
Applicant’s Request: Preliminary Subdivision Plat (9 lots)

Staff Analysis

Proposed Lots: NG Kadlec Land, LLC has submitted the attached Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1
for the vacant 2.8-acre parcel located at 2545 Kadlec Drive. As shown on the attachment, the developer is
proposing the subdivision of this parcel into 9 lots, at least one of which will be reserved for stormwater
detention (drainage). The other lots will become buildable single-family lots on which the developer will likely
construct single-family homes. This parcel is zoned R-1A, Single-Family Residential, and was improved with
infrastructure approximately 15 years ago. Kadlec Drive is improved to the southern end of the subject
property, and there is a gravel emergency access connection to Elaine Drive.

The proposed plat includes utility easements between several of the lots, and each lot is already served with
water and sewer laterals. The proposed buildable lots are approximately 81.4 feet wide by 164 feet deep (0.31
acre) and the parcel is relatively flat and self-contained for drainage. The minimum lot width in the R-1A
district is 70 feet, and the minimum lot area is 8,750 square feet. All of the proposed lots exceed these
minimums. This land is located in the Beloit School District.

Platting Process: Residential subdivisions require approval of a preliminary (conceptual) plat and a final
(detailed) plat. The Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any preliminary plat.

Surrounding Uses: There are single- and two-family dwellings to the east of the subject property with both R-
1A and R-2, Two-Family Residential, zoning classifications. There is a newly constructed multifamily residential
apartment community to the west of the subject property with Planned Unit Development, PUD, zoning.
There is also a vacant 4.8-acre parcel with single-family zoning to the west of the subject property. There is a
vacant lot zoned R-3, Low-Density Multifamily Residential to the north, and two vacant parcels totaling 16
acres zoned R-2 to the south of the subject property extending down to Elmwood Avenue.

Proposed Public Improvements: The existing street already includes curb and gutter, lights, water, and sewer
mains. However, the City Engineer has determined that stormwater discharge from the proposed lots cannot
exceed the current level (which is zero), and therefore on-site detention is required. The City Engineer has also
determined that proposed Out-Lot 1 alone does not provide sufficient stormwater detention, and therefore
the developer has been given several options to achieve the required detention levels. Because a resolution to
this issue has not been agreed upon, staff is recommending a condition to require resolution of this issue
before the final plat is reviewed by Plan Commission. A Development Agreement will be required for these
and other public improvements such as concrete sidewalks.

As mentioned above, Kadlec Drive does not currently extend all the way to Elmwood Avenue. Therefore, all of

7



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1

the traffic traveling to/from the apartment complexes along Kadlec Drive must use West Hart Rd or Post Road
through the adjacent neighborhood to the east. However, the developer does not own the land along
Elmwood Avenue, so the City is not able to require the developer to dedicate land which he does not own for
a new public street connection to Elmwood Avenue. As mentioned above, there is a gravel emergency access
connection to Elaine Drive at the southern end of Kadlec Drive over previously dedicated right-of-way. The
City Engineer is not requiring the off-site improvement of Elaine Drive into a fully improved street connection
to Robinson Drive at this time.

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: The Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive
Plan recommends Planned Neighborhood uses of the subject property. The proposed subdivision plat is
consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goals #3
and #5 by encouraging residential growth with high quality infrastructure.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Elmwood
Commons Plat 1 for the vacant 2.8-acre parcel located at 2545 Kadlec Drive, based on its consistency with the
Comprehensive Plan, Subdivision Ordinance, and Zoning Ordinance, subject to the following conditions:

1. The Final Plat shall substantially conform to the approved Preliminary Plat with respect to the number
of lots, lot sizes, and the proposed right-of-way layout.

2. A draft of any proposed restrictive covenants shall be submitted with the Final Plat.
3. The Final Plat shall include a designated area for a cluster mailbox delivery system.
4. Prior to Plan Commission review of the Final Plat, the City Engineer shall approve the proposed layout

of the stormwater detention facilities, with detailed engineering plans to follow along with any
necessary drainage easements on the Final Plat.

5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission. The Director of Planning and Building Services may approve minor changes
administratively.

ATTACHMENTS: Location & Zoning Map, Preliminary Plat, Application, Public Notice, and Resolution.

8



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1
9



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1
10



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1
11



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1
12



June 23 Staff Report 3a, Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat 1

RESOLUTION
APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF ELMWOOD COMMONS PLAT 1

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2545 KADLEC DRIVE

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has heretofore held a public
hearing on June 23, 2021 regarding the Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat No. 1 for
the property located at 2545 Kadlec Drive in the City of Beloit.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit
does hereby approve the attached Preliminary Plat of Elmwood Commons Plat No. 1, subject to
the following conditions:

1. The Final Plat shall substantially conform to the approved Preliminary Plat with respect
to the number of lots, lot sizes, and the proposed right-of-way layout.

2. A draft of any proposed restrictive covenants shall be submitted with the Final Plat.
3. The Final Plat shall include a designated area for a cluster mailbox delivery system.
4. Prior to Plan Commission review of the Final Plat, the City Engineer shall approve the

proposed layout of the stormwater detention facilities, with detailed engineering plans
to follow along with any necessary drainage easements on the Final Plat.

5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved
by the Plan Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve
minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 23rd day of June, 2021.

Plan Commission

Timothy Weeden, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen
Community Development Director

13



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: June 23, 2021

Agenda Item: 3.b.

File Number: ZMA-2021-06

General Information

Applicant: Justin and Andrea Fjalstad
Owner: Atonement Lutheran Church
Address/Location: 901 Harrison Avenue
Applicant’s Request: Rezoning from R-1B, Single-Family Residential, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: Justin and Andrea Fjalstad have submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to
change the zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands and
Institutions District, for the former Atonement Lutheran Church property located at 901 Harrison Avenue.

Request Details: The church on the subject property ceased operations in fall 2020, and has been listed for
sale. The applicants have made an offer to purchase the subject property that is contingent upon the
requested rezoning action. Because the property is zoned Single-Family Residential, most institutional uses
would require a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). The structure is too large to be converted into a single-family
dwelling. The applicants intend to continue using the subject property as an institution of to-be-determined
type (e.g. day care), and are seeking PLI zoning to clarify the exact types of institutional uses that may be
established. PLI is a special purpose zoning classification that is intended to accommodate public and quasi-
public uses such as schools, religious institutions, day care centers, libraries, etc. The subject property is 0.65
acre in area and includes the approximately 14,000 square-foot church building and off-street parking lot.

Surrounding Uses: The subject property is surrounded by low-density residential uses within a large R-1B,
Single-Family Residential, zoning district. The subject property (0.65 acre) anchors the southwest corner of the
block, which happens to be Block 15 of the Original Plat. The “Five Points” commercial district anchors the
opposite (northeast) corner of the same block, with the remainder of the block occupied by residential
dwellings.

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan: The Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential-Urban
uses for the subject property. This designation includes small public and institutional uses. Therefore, this
proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission is required to make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

14



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property.
PLI is a special purpose zoning district that allows public and institutional uses that, by their nature, are
intended to be embedded within established neighborhoods. The applicant has not settled on a final
use, but the PLI zoning classification includes a concise list of permitted and conditional uses.

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed PLI, Public Lands and Institutions, classification is consistent with the surrounding single-
family zoning district.

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.
The subject property is not suitable for conversion to a single-family dwelling under the current single-
family zoning, due to the size of the building and large surface parking lot. Although some institutional
uses may be allowed with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), the applicant does not have a tenant at this
time and is therefore unable to provide operational details required for a CUP review. Rezoning the
subject property to PLI and an established list of uses gives the applicant their desired certainty.

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
The subject property is located in an established residential neighborhood on the edge of the College-
Park Historic District. Because the surrounding area is fully built-out, there have not been any
significant rezoning actions in the general area during the past five years.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family Residential District. to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions
District, for the former Atonement Lutheran Church property located at 901 Harrison Avenue.

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.

15



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue
16



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue
17



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue
18



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue
19



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue
20



June 23 Staff Report 3b, ZMA - 901 Harrison Avenue
21



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 23, 2021 

Agenda Item:  3.c.  

File Number:  ZMA-2021-05 

 

General Information  

 
Applicant:  City of Beloit Planning and Building Services   
 
Owner:  Saeed and Irma Amin 
 
Address/Location:  2021 E. Ridge Road  
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Planning and Building Services staff has submitted an application for a Zoning 
Map Amendment from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, to permanent R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District, for the property located at 2021 E. Ridge Road in the City of Beloit.   
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Site Conditions:  The property owner has been approved by City Council for attachment into the City 
from the Town of Turtle due to a failing septic system. Section 4 of the Ordinance approving the attachment 
assigned a temporary zoning classification of R-1A, Single Family Residential District, to the property and 
directed Plan Commission to initiate an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance setting forth a permanent zoning 
classification (see attached Annexation Ordinance).  Planning staff initiated the Zoning Map Amendment on 
behalf of the Plan Commission. 
 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are residential land uses surrounding the subject property, zoned R-
1, Residential One, located in the Town of Turtle.  
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map 
recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for this property. This land use category is intended for 
existing and planned groupings of single-family detached residences that are served by public sanitary sewer 
and water systems. This recent attachment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan 
Commission is required to make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 
 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The proposed use is compatible with the adjacent single-family uses. 

  
2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  

The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the zoning of adjacent properties.  
 
3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.  

22



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

The subject property is already zoned R-1A, but on a temporary basis, which must be changed to a 
permanent classification according to the Annexation Ordinance. 
   

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.  
Although only a few properties in the subdivision have been attached/annexed in the past few years, 
this trend is likely to accelerate as existing septic systems continue to fail in this neighborhood and 
attachment is required in order to connect to the City’s sanitary sewer system. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning district classification from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, to permanent R-1A, 
Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 2021 E. Ridge Road. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Application, Annexation Ordinance, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

 

LOCATION MAP  

 
 

24



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 
25



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 
26



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

  

27



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

 
 
 
 

28



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
June 2, 2021 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The Planning & Building Services Division has submitted an application for review and consideration for a 
Zoning Map Amendment to rezone the subject property located at: 2021 E. Ridge Road from temporary R-1A, 
Single-Family Residential District to permanent R-1A, Single-Family Residential District. 
 
The following public hearings will be held regarding this application: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, June 23, 2021, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
City Council:  Tuesday, July 6, 2021, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard in The 
Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 

We are interested in your opinion.* 
 

*Due to the COVID-19 crisis, members of the public are highly encouraged to provide oral or written 
comments to the Commission and City Council via alternative means.  You may mail your comments to 
the attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.  You may 
also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments over the phone.  In-person attendance at Commission 
and Council meetings will be limited. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29

mailto:rottmannh@beloitwi.gov


ZMA-2021-04, 1945 Prairie Ave  

 

  
Town Clerk 

Town of Turtle 
6916 S. County Road J 

Beloit, WI 53511 
 

  

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  

  
 

  

   

30



June 23 Staff Report 3c, ZMA-2021-05, 2021 E. Ridge Road 

ORDINANCE NO. 3714 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

 
The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 
19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 
 
The following described land is hereby changed from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District 
to permanent R-1A, Single-Family Residential District: 
 

LOT 125 OF A RE SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT A AND LOTS 34 TO 54 OF TURTLE RIDGE, BEING PART 
OF THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 30, T. 1., R. 13 E., OF THE 4TH P.M. TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN CONTAINING 0.51 ACRES MORE OR LESS (A/K/A 2021 E. RIDGE ROAD).  
 

 
 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication. 
 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
      City Council of the City of Beloit 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Clinton Anderson, Council President 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Published this ____ day of _________, 2021 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2021 

01-611100-5231-  

 
 
 
 

 

31



CSM-2021-04, 9024 S. Suburban Drive (TOT)  

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 23, 2021 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2021-04 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Combs & Associates  
 
Owner:  Kelly Pike and Kent Nelson 
 
Address/Location: 9024 S. Suburban Drive  
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has proposed a one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
9024 S. Suburban Drive in the Town of Turtle.   
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The current use of the area covered by this CSM is residential and vacant 
land.   

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed CSM is to combine two lots into one to 
construct an accessory structure.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  This CSM is located east of Shopiere Road and north of the 
Oaks in the Town of Turtle.  There are residential uses to the north, east and west of the subject 
property, zoned R-1, Residential One District in the Town of Turtle. The properties to the south 
are institutional in the City of Beloit zoned R-1A, Single Family Residential and agricultural uses 
in the Town of Turtle zoned AE, Exclusive Agriculture.  
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends –Single-Family Residential Exurban uses. 
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject property is not currently served by municipal utilities.  

 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Staff and Utility Contacts who had no comments. 
 
 
 

32



CSM-2021-04, 9024 S. Suburban Drive (TOT)  

 
 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located 9024 S. Suburban Drive in the Town of 
Turtle, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 
31, 2021 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, Application, and Resolution. 

 

33



CSM-2021-04, 9024 S. Suburban Drive (TOT)   

LOCATION MAP  
 

 

34



CSM-2021-04, 9024 S. Suburban Drive (TOT)   

 
     

35



CSM-2021-04, 9024 S. Suburban Drive (TOT)   

 
 
 

  

36



CSM-2021-04, 9024 S. Suburban Drive (TOT)  

 
RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9024 S. SUBURBAN DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 9024 
S. Suburban Drive, containing 1.56 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOTS 6 AND 7, INDIAN TRAIL FIRST ADDITION AND LOCATED IN THE SW ¼ OF THE 
NW ¼ AND IN THE SE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 17 T. 1N., R 13E. OF THE 4TH 
P.M., TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property 
located at 9024 S. Suburban Drive, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by 
December 31, 2021 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services 
Division. 

 
Adopted this 23rd day of June, 2021. 
 

Plan Commission 
 
 

 _ 
Timothy Weeden, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 
 

37



June 23 Staff Report 4b, Sign Ordinance Amendment

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: June 23, 2021

Agenda Item: 4.b.

File Number: RPB-2021-04

General Information

Request: Proposed amendment to the Sign Ordinance to create a bonus system for on-
premises wall signs.

Staff Analysis

Request Details: The attached, draft Ordinance was prepared at the request of the Plan
Commission Chairman to address two longstanding goals of both Plan Commissioners and staff:
(1) to reduce the frequency of Exception requests for secondary signs over 30 square feet; and
(2) to discourage the installation of large freestanding pole signs.

The proposed Ordinance will add to the existing bonus system in the Sign Ordinance (see
attached). It will allow up to 90 percent of the unused sign allowance for a freestanding
primary sign (pole or ground-mounted) to be applied or transferred to one or more secondary
wall signs, provided each wall sign does not exceed 25 percent of the building face. This new
bonus would provide an incentive to businesses to reduce the size of their pole or monument
sign, which staff and the Plan Commission chair feel is the primary cause of sign pollution.

For example, a typical commercial lot is allowed a 150 square-foot primary freestanding sign
and three secondary, 30 square-foot secondary signs (usually wall signs). If an owner wanted to
install a 90 square-foot primary sign instead of the maximum, then they could transfer 54
square feet (90 percent of the unused 60 square feet) to their secondary wall signs in any
distribution they prefer. The surplus 54 square feet could be divided evenly among the three
secondary signs or added to just one or two signs, provided all secondary wall signs comply with
the 25 percent of façade requirement.

At the request of Plan Commission, staff evaluated the proposed Ordinance as hypothetically
applied to recent sign requests at Popeye’s, Verizon, Jiffy Lube, and Mavis Tires. As drafted
with a 90% of surplus bonus, both Verizon and Jiffy Lube would have complied with code and
would not have needed to request an Exception. The same holds for a 50% of surplus bonus.
However, both Popeye’s and Mavis Tires would have still needed an Exception whether
applying a 90% of surplus bonus or 50% of surplus bonus. At 90%, Mavis would have been very
close to meeting code (within 9 square feet).

38



June 23 Staff Report 4b, Sign Ordinance Amendment

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance
No. 3712 to create Sections 30.31(3)(d) and (e) of the Sign Ordinance relating to sign area
bonuses for on-premises signs.

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Ordinance No. 3712 and Existing Section 30.31.

39



June 23 Staff Report 4b, Sign Ordinance Amendment
40



June 23 Staff Report 4b, Sign Ordinance Amendment
41



June 23 Staff Report 4b, Sign Ordinance Amendment
42


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2021-1339 - Attachment
	2021-1336 - Attachment
	2021-1334 - Attachment
	2021-1335 - Attachment
	2021-1337 - Attachment 
	2021-1338 - Attachment

